AGENDA | VIRTUAL REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL
MEETING

November 23, 2021 at 6:00 PM
Council Chambers - Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street

The meeting will adjourn when all business is concluded or 10:00 PM, whichever comes first

Town Council and Administration

Mayor: Jacques K. Gilbert | Mayor Pro Tem: Nicole L. Dozier
Council Members: Brett D. Gantt; Audra M. Killingsworth; Cheryl F. Stallings; Terry Mahaffey
Town Manager: Catherine Crosby | Assistant Town Managers: Shawn Purvis and Marty Stone
Town Clerk: Donna B. Hosch, MMC | Town Attorney: Laurie L. Hohe

COMMENCEMENT

Call to Order | Invocation | Pledge of Allegiance

PRESENTATIONS

-0
RN

Apex Consolidated Alumni and North Forgotten History Committee
These two groups wish to present their thanks to the Town Council for approval of the Apex

Consolidated Schools Historical Marker which will be located at Apex Elementary School

o
N

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor

Mayor Gilbert to present proclamation for Small Business Saturday 2021.

CONSENT AGENDA

All Consent Agenda items are considered routine, to be enacted by one motion with the adoption of the Consent Agenda,
and without discussion. If a Council Member requests discussion of an item, the item may be removed from the
Consent Agenda and considered separately. The Mayor will present the Consent Agenda
to be set prior to taking action on the following items:

O
z

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor

Motion to re-appoint Michael J. Wilson as Board of Adjustment Chair, Lisa Carley as Board of

Adjustment Vice-Chair, and Tracy Taylor as Board of Adjustment Alternate 1.

O
Z
N

Russell Dalton, Traffic Engineering Manager

Motion to approve temporary closure of the on-street angled parking spaces and sidewalk
along the parcel frontage of 76 Hunter Street and establishing a signed sidewalk detour route
along Grand Central Station, Chessie Station, and Metro Station in effect Monday through
Friday between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. for the purpose of staging a crane and
vertical building construction activity starting the week of November 22, 2021 and terminating

August 1, 2022.

-Page 1 -




O
o

@)
~

O
o

O
o~

(@]
~

@
o

O
Ne

O

O

Russell Dalton, Traffic Engineering Manager

Motion to approve an Ordinance amending Section 20-163 subsection (b), reserving the first
eight (8) parking spaces on the south side of Hunter Street east of Grand Central Station for a
GoApex bus layover area on Monday through Saturday between the hours of 5:30 a.m. and
10:00 p.m when designated by signs indicating said reservation.

Liz Loftin, Senior Planner

Motion to approve revised Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Case
#21CZ13 Evans Road PUD in order to provide a revised Attachment A - Legal Description.
Marty Stone, PE, Assistant Town Manager

Motion to approve Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 10 which appropriates funds to pay
amounts due under the second amendment to the Utility Infrastructure Reimbursement
Agreement with Meritage Homes of Carolinas, Inc.

Tesa Silver, Deputy Town Clerk

Motion to approve Minutes of the October 26, 2021 Regular Council Meeting

Russell Dalton, Traffic Engineering Manager

Motion to approve an Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement with the Triad Math and
Science Academy Company for installation of sidewalk and curb and gutter along Dropseed
Drive for actual costs incurred not to exceed $50,000.00, authorize Town manager to execute
same and approve corresponding Budget Ordinance Amendment 11 and Capital Project
Ordinance Amendment 2022-03.

Catherine Crosby, Jason Armstrong, Laurie Hohe

Motion to approve an ordinance amendment to multiple town code sections providing that

certain violations of the Town Code are punishable as misdemeanors.

Colleen Merays, Downtown & Small Business Development Coordinator

Motion to approve the Co-sponsored Apex Farmers’ Market request to amend their approved
schedule and add an additional market day on Saturday, December 18, 2021 in the Depot
Parking Lot.

Vance Holloman, Finance Director

A motion to approve a Resolution accepting American Rescue Plan Act Funds.

Vance Holloman, Finance Director

A motion to approve the form of a proposed vendor agreement between the Town and Wake

County which will enable eligible Apex utility customers to receive assistance under the Low

- Page 2 -




Income Water Assistance Program(LIHWAP) and authorize the Finance Director to execute the
agreement.

Mary Beth Manville, Human Resources Director

Motion to approve the Additional Sick Leave Policy for Town employees, effective January 10,
2021.

Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney

Motion to approve ordinance amendment to Sections 6-13 and 13-85 of the Town of Apex
Code of Ordinances.

Steve Maynard, Purchasing & Contracts Manager

Motion to approve Member Cooperative Bid Agreement for Joint Purchasing of Utility
Materials, Supplies, and equipment.

Steve Maynard Purchasing & Contracts Manager

Motion to approve report of award of contract to Wesco Distribution for purchase of single
phase pad mount transformers.

Steve Adams, Real Estate & Public Utilities

Motion to accept the deed of 23% interest in property recently purchased by Town of Cary as
part of the Cary Apex Water Treatment Facility and authorize Town Manager to execute any
documents related to the transfer.

Steve Adams, Real Estate & Public Utilities

Motion to approve Town of Cary moving forward with the recombination of the parcel Wake
County PIN 0722-58-5884, into the larger parcel Wake County PIN 0722-48-4517 to become
part of the Cary Apex Water Treatment Facility and authorize Town Manager to execute all
related documents for the recombination plat.

Keith McGee, Fire Chief

Motion to approve a five-year agreement between the Town of Apex and HAAS Alert to
provide automated vehicle safety alerts on fire apparatus that are motionless with warning
lights in operation.

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor

Motion to re-appoint Veronika Maynard-Simon and Mary Miskimon and to appoint Steven
Mikes and Elizabeth O’Brien to the Tree Citizens Advisory Panel (TreeCAP).

Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and Community Development

Motion to adopt a resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to
accept the Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk and to adopt a Resolution Setting Date

of Public Hearing for December 14, 2021 on the Question of Annexation - Apex Town Council’s

- Page 3 -




intent to annex Matthew & Michelle Michela and Justin & Maryann Michela (Hudson Landing)
property containing 10.54 acres located at 7517 Roberts Road, 2310 Pollard Place, & 2000

Cabin Cove Road, Annexation #718 into the Town'’s corporate limits.

CN21 Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and Community Development

o

o

o

-

Motion to adopt a resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to
accept the Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk and to adopt a Resolution Setting Date
of Public Hearing for December 14, 2021 on the Question of Annexation - Apex Town Council's
intent to annex Belinda Woodard Harris property containing 1.97 acres located at 2924 Evans

Road, Annexation #713 into the Town's corporate limits.

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

Mayor Gilbert will call for additional Agenda items from Council or Staff and set the
Regular Meeting Agenda prior to Council actions.

PUBLIC FORUM

Public Forum allows the public an opportunity to address the Town Council. The speaker is requested not to address items
that appear as Public Hearings scheduled on the Regular Agenda. The Mayor will recognize those who would like to speak at the
appropriate time. Large groups are asked to select a representative to speak for the entire group.

Comments must be limited to 3 minutes to allow others the opportunity to speak.

PUBLIC HEARINGS
1 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager
Public hearing and possible motion to adopt an Ordinance on the Question of Annexation -
Apex Town Council’s intent to annex Mian Lin property containing 1.14 acres located at 5921

Farmpond Road, Annexation #719 into the Town'’s corporate limits.

2 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager
Public hearing and possible motion to adopt an Ordinance on the Question of Annexation -
Apex Town Council’s intent to annex Linderman Properties, LLC (Triangle Math & Science
Academy) property containing 20.083 acres located at 351 New Hill Olive Chapel Road,
Annexation #720 into the Town's corporate limits.

3 Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner
Public Hearing and possible motion to approve Rezoning Application #21CZ21 Beauregard
Place at Weddington. The applicant, AG Wimberly LLC., seeks to rezone approximately 3.30
acres from Rural Residential (RR) to Low Density Residential-Conditional Zoning (LD-CZ). The
proposed rezoning is located at 0 Wimberly Road.

4 Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner Il

- Page 4 -




Public Hearing and possible motion to approve Rezoning Application #21CZ22 Old Ivey Road.
The applicant, Ranjeet Agarwala, Estates at White Oak LLC., seeks to rezone approximately
8.82 acres from Rural Residential (RR) to Low Density Residential-Conditional Zoning (LD-CZ).
The proposed rezoning is located at 1516 Old Ivey Road and 7620 McQueens Road.

PH5  Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner
Public Hearing and possible motion to approve Rezoning Application #21CZ23 Scotts Ridge
Office and Veterinary Hospital. The applicant, Jeff Roach, Peak Engineering and Design, LLC.,
seeks to rezone approximately 1.45 acres from Residential Agricultural (RA) to Neighborhood
Business-Conditional Zoning (B1-CZ). The proposed rezoning is located at 0 & 6633 Apex
Barbecue Road.

PH6  Shelly Mayo, Planner I

Public hearing and possible motion to approve Rezoning Application #21CZ25 Villages of
Apex PUD Amendment. The applicant, Curteis Calhoun with Enclave Holdings, LLC, seeks to
rezone approximately 3.62 acres from Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-
CZ #17CZ11) to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ). The proposed

rezoning is located at 0 Laura Duncan Road.

OLD BUSINESS

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

UPDATES BY TOWN MANAGER

CLOSED SESSION
CS1 Steve Adams, Real Estate & Public Utilities

Possible motion to go into closed session pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(5) to discuss the
town'’s negotiating position with respect to acquisition of real property.

WORK SESSION

- Page 5 -




ADJOURNMENT

- Page 6 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: PRESENTATION
Meeting Date: November 23, 2021
ltem Details
Presenter(s): Apex Consolidated Alumni and North Forgotten History Committee

Department(s):

Requested Motion

These two groups wish to present their thanks to the Town Council for approval of the Apex Consolidated
Schools Historical Marker which will be located at Apex Elementary School

Approval Recommended?

N/A
[tem Details
N/A
Attachments
e N/A

- Page 7 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: PRESENTATION
Meeting Date: November 23,2021

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor

Department(s): Governing Body

Requested Motion

Mayor Gilbert to present proclamation for Small Business Saturday 2021

Approval Recommended?

NA

[tem Details
Presentation by Colleen Merays, Downtown & Small Business Development Coordinator, Town of Apex and

Shannon Flaherty, President, Apex Chamber of Commerce on Apex’s Small Business Saturday promotion.

Attachments

e Proclamation

- Page 8 -




Town of Apex, North Carolina

Proclamation

from the Office of the Mayor

SMALL BUSINESS SATURDAY 2021

WHEREAS, the Town of Apex, North Carolina celebrates our local small businesses and the
contributions they make to our economy and to our unique and vibrant community character;

and

WHEREAS, small businesses continue to navigate the unprecedented challenges of a global

pandemic as they support their employees and meet the needs of their local communities; and

WHEREAS, according to the United States Small Business Administration, there are 32.5
million small businesses employing 46.8 percent of the private workforce in the United States;

and

WHEREAS, according to the United States Small Business Administration in North Carolina,
there are 964,280 small businesses in North Carolina and they account for 99.6 percent of North

Carolina businesses and were responsible for creating 39,382 net new jobs in 2021; and

WHEREAS, according to the 2020 Small Business Saturday Consumer Insights Survey, sales
at independent retailers and restaurants on Small Business Saturday reached an estimated $19.8
billion in 2020, up from $19.6 in 2019; and

WHEREAS, Small Business Saturday celebrates the remarkable spirit of Apex, North Carolina

small businesses and shows how essential they are to our community; and

WHEREAS, companies planning promotions on Small Business Saturday said the day helps
their business stand out during the busy holiday shopping season, and contributes significantly

to their holiday sales each year; and

WHEREAS, public awareness of the contributions made by Apex local businesses is the key

to sustaining a healthy business climate; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Apex are grateful to the small businesses of Apex for their presence

in our community; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Apex joins the U.S. Chamber of Commerce and the Apex Chamber

of Commerce in supporting America’s small businesses;

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor of the Town of Apex, North Carolina, do
hereby proclaim Saturday, November 27, 2021 as SMALL BUSINESS SATURDAY. We urge
residents of our community, and communities across the country, to support small businesses

and merchants on Small Business Saturday throughout the year.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand
and caused the Seal of the Town of Apex, North Carolina
to be affixed this the 23rd day of November 2021

A
N

ques K. Gilbert, Mayor

- Page 9 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: November 23, 2021

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor
Department(s): Governing Body

Requested Motion

Motion to re-appoint Michael J. Wilson as Board of Adjustment Chair, Lisa Carley as Board of Adjustment
Vice-Chair, and Tracy Taylor as Board of Adjustment Alternate 1.

Approval Recommended?

Yes
[tem Details
Mayor Gilbert recommends current Board of Adjustment Chair Michael J. Wilson be named Chair for his 37

term and current Vice Chair Lisa Carley be named Vice Chair for her 3" term; the terms shall run from January

1, 2022 through December 31, 2022.

Mayor Gilbert recommends Tracy Taylor be named to her second term as Board of Adjustment Alternate 1;

the term shall run from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2024.

Attachments

e Proposed Board of Adjustment Appointments 2021

- Page 10 -




TOWN OF APEX
PROPOSED BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT RE-APPOINTMENTS

Unified Development Ordinance:
e Section 2.1.3.B.5 Term. The term of office of each member appointed shall be for three years. No member of the Board of Adjustment may serve more than three consecutive
three year terms.
e Section 2.1.3.C.1 Officers. Chair and vice-chair. The chair and vice-chair of the Board of Adjustment shall be appointed by the mayor from the members of the Board. The term
of the chair and vice-chair shall be one year. A past chair or vice-chair may be re-appointed, even though no chair or vice-chair shall serve for more than four consecutive terms.
Vacancies within a term shall be filled by the same method as the original appointment.

Michael J. Wilson Lisa Carley Tracy Taylor

Chair Vice-Chair (Alternate 1)

01/20/2015 - 01/01/2017 - 01/01/2019 -
12/31/2016 12/31/2019 12/31/2021;
01/01/2020 -
12/31/2021 (moved
seat, keeps term)

01/01/2017 - 01/01/2020 - 01/01/2022 -
12/31/2019 12/31/2022 12/31/2024
01/01/2020 -
12/31/2022

- Page 11 -




TOWN OF APEX
PROPOSED BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT RE-APPOINTMENTS

Chair Vice-Chair

1%t appointment Michael J. Wilson Lisa Carley

01/01/2020-12/31/2020 01/01/2020-12/31/2020

2" appointment 01/01/2021-12/31/2021 01/01/2021-12/31/2021

34 appointment 01/01/2022-12/31/2022 01/01/2022-12/31/2022

4t appointment

- Page 12 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: November 23,2021

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Russell Dalton, Traffic Engineering Manager
Department(s): Public Works & Transportation

Requested Motion

Motion to approve temporary closure of the on-street angled parking spaces and sidewalk along the parcel
frontage of 76 Hunter Street and establishing a signed sidewalk detour route along Grand Central Station,
Chessie Station, and Metro Station in effect Monday through Friday between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 5:30
p.m. for the purpose of staging a crane and vertical building construction activity starting the week of
November 22, 2021 and terminating August 1, 2022.

Approval Recommended?

Yes

ltem Details
There is no practical alternative to temporary closure of the on-street spaces and sidewalk, as the crane
must be staged on the opposite side of the building from the steel laydown area. The contractor has also

committed to clearing and cleaning that area for the parade dates.

Attachments

e Map of closure and sidewalk detour route

- Page 13 -




-q

J’ " J e x.-n

oo

A Imagery ©2021 Maxar Technologles L)St Geologlcal Survey, Map data @2021 United States Terms Privacy Send ee-Bck




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: November 23, 2021

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Russell Dalton, Traffic Engineering Manager
Department(s): Public Works and Transportation

Requested Motion

Motion to approve an Ordinance amending Section 20-163 subsection (b), reserving the first eight (8) parking
spaces on the south side of Hunter Street east of Grand Central Station for a GoApex bus layover area on
Monday through Saturday between the hours of 5:30 a.m. and 10:00 p.m when designated by signs
indicating said reservation.

Approval Recommended?

Yes

ltem Details
The purpose of this amendment is to prohibit public parking within a row of eight (8) existing angled
parking spaces on Hunter Street to provide a dedicated layover area for the bus serving GoApex Route 1
on Monday through Saturday from 5:30 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. A consent agenda item was approved by
Council on May 19, 2020 supporting this reservation, and this ordinance amendment is required to post

signs and conduct enforcement.

A layover location is needed for approximately 10 minutes during every transit hour of operation to provide
the bus operator an opportunity for a brief break. The layover location was selected as it meets the safety
and operational needs identified by GoCary, the anticipated operator of GoApex Route 1, and is located in

close proximity to the transit route as well as Town facility restrooms.

Attachments

e Ordinance No. 2021-1123-39
e Map of bus route and layover area

- Page 15 -




TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-1123-39

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 20-163 “RESERVED PARKING ZONES” OF
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE TOWN OF APEX

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex as
follows:

Section 1. That Section 20-163 of the Town of Apex Code of Ordinances is hereby amended
as shown immediately below with deletions being shown by struck-through text
and additions shown by underlined text:

Sec. 20-163. — Reserved parking zones.

(@) No person except authorized personnel shall park a vehicle in a zone or
parking space designated by a sign or signs indicating such areas to be for
reserved parking only.

(b) For the purpose of this section the following areas is are designated as
“reserved parking”:

(1) Two parking spaces in the parking lot of the Apex Chamber of Commerce
southwesterly from Center Street are reserved for staff members of the
chamber of commerce.

(2) The first eight (8) parking spaces along the south side of Hunter Street
east of Grand Central Station are reserved for use as a GoApex bus
layover area on Monday through Saturday between the hours of 5:30 a.m.
and 10:00 p.m. when designated by signs indicating said reservation.

Section 2. The Town Clerk and/or Town Manager are hereby authorized to renumber, revise
formatting, correct typographic errors, to verify and correct cross references,
indexes and diagrams as necessary to codify, publish, and/or accomplish the
provisions of this Ordinance or future amendments as long as doing so does not
alter the terms of this Ordinance.

Section 3. Severability, Conflict of Laws. If this Ordinance or application thereof to any
person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other
provisions or applications of the Ordinance which can be given separate effect
and to the end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. All
ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby
repealed.

- Page 16 -




Section 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption.

Introduced by Council Member

Seconded by Council Member

Attest:

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC
Town Clerk

Approved As To Form:

Laurie L. Hohe,
Town Attorney

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA

Jacques K. Gilbert
Mayor

- Page 17 -




GoApex Bus Layover

Layover Location Route
I Proposed Layover Location

Figure 1. Proposed Bus Layover — Routing

- Page 18 -




Figure 2. Proposed Bus Layover — Parking Impacts

- Page 19 -




|Agenda ltem | cover sheet

for consideration by the Apex Town Council

ltem Type: CONSENT AGENDA
Meeting Date: November 23, 2021

ltem Details

Presenter(s): Liz Loftin, Senior Planner
Department(s): Planning and Community Development

Requested Motion

Motion to approve revised Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Case #21CZ13 Evans
Road PUD in order to provide a revised Attachment A - Legal Description.

Approval Recommended?

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval.

ltem Details
Rezoning Case #21CZ13 was approved at the August 24, 2021 Town Council meeting. Due to a scrivener’s
error, Attachment A of the zoning ordinance did not provide a legal description of the property as required,
but instead listed the property by its Wake County parcel identification numbers (PIN). The legal description

has been provided and is now attached as Attachment A.

Attachments
e Statement of the Town Council
¢ Ordinance to Amend the Official Zoning District Map
e Attachment A - Legal Description (revised)
e Attachment B - PUD text and plans

- Page 20 -




STATEMENT OF TOWN COUNCIL AND ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF
THE TOWN OF APEX TO CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 34.57 ACRES LOCATED AT 0, 0, 2921,
2929, 3025, 3027, 3029, 3033 EVANS ROAD; 0, 7616, 7628 HUMIE OLIVE ROAD; 0, 0, 2825, 2828, 2905,
2909, 2912, 2917, 2925 WALDEN ROAD FROM RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR) TO PLANNED UNIT
DEVELOPMENT-CONDITIONAL ZONING (PUD-CZ)

#21CzZ13

WHEREAS, Jason Vickers, Beazer Homes, applicant (the “Applicant”), submitted a completed application
for a conditional zoning on the 3™ day of May 2021 (the “Application”). The proposed conditional zoning
is designated #21CZ13;

WHEREAS, the Director of Planning and Community Development for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin,
caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting) of a public hearing on #21CZ13 before the
Planning Board on the 9" day of August 2021;

WHEREAS, the Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 9" day of August 2021, gathered facts,
received public comments and formulated a recommendation regarding the application for conditional
zoning #21CZ13. A motion was made by the Apex Planning Board to recommend approval; the motion
passed unanimously by a vote of 6 to 0 for the application for #21CZ13;

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §160D-601 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the
Director of Planning and Community Development caused proper notice to be given (by publication and
posting), of a public hearing on #21CZ13 before the Apex Town Council on the 24 day of August 2021;

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 24" day of August 2021. Liz Loftin, Senior
Planner, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing;

WHEREAS, all persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #21CZ13 and
who were residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction, or who owned property adjoining the
property for which the conditional zoning is sought, were allowed to present evidence at the public
hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away;

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is consistent with the 2045 Land
Use Plan and other adopted plans in that: The 2045 Land Use Map designates this area as Medium Density
& Medium/High Density Residential. This designation on the 2045 Land Use Map includes the zoning
district Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) and the Apex Town Council has further
considered that the proposed rezoning to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) will
maintain the character and appearance of the area and provide the flexibility to accommodate the growth
in population, economy, and infrastructure consistent with that contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map;

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public
interest in that: The rezoning will provide a transition between lower and higher residential densities and
provide pedestrian accommodation at the Humie Olive and Evans Road intersection. The rezoning will
encourage compatible development of the property and increase the tax base; and

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council by a vote of 5 and 0 approved Application #21CZ13 rezoning the subject
tract located at 0, 0, 2921, 2929, 3025, 3027, 3029, 3033 Evans Rd.; 0, 7616, 7628 Humie Olive Rd.; 0, O,
2825, 2828, 2905, 2909, 2912, 2917, 2925 Walden Rd. from Rural Residential (RR) to Planned Unit
Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX

Section 1: The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in
Attachment “A” — Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are
hereafter referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.”

- Page 21 -




Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #21CZ13

Section 2: The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the
zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from Rural Residential (RR) to Planned Unit Development-
Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) District, subject to the conditions stated herein.

Section 3: The Director of Planning and Community Development is hereby authorized and
directed to cause the said Official Zoning District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be
physically revised and amended to reflect the zoning changes ordained by this Ordinance.

Section 4: The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to the conditions in Attachment “B” Evans Road PUD
which are imposed as part of this rezoning.

Section 5: The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including
the uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified
Development Ordinance. Site plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the
Official Zoning District Map shall be submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified
Development Ordinance.

Section 6: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption.

Motion by Council Member

Seconded by Council Member

With Council Member(s) voting "aye."
With Council Member(s) voting "no."
This the day of 2021.
TOWN OF APEX
Mayor
ATTEST:
Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Town Attorney

- Page 22 -




H // Attachment "A" Bohler Engineering NC, PLLC
4130 Parklake Avenue, Suite 310
Raleigh, NC 27612

919.578.9000
Page 1 of 3

Date: November 12, 2021
Legal Description of
Properties containing 35.500 Acres
To Be Rezoned into Zone PUD (Planned Unit Development)
Apex, NC

The area described herein is encompassing of the following PINs:
0721-81-0212, 0721-81-2581, 0721-81-6591, 0721-81-6313, 0721-90-1910, 0721-80-9611,
0721-80-7948, 0721-81-5061, 0721-81-4170, 0721-80-4836, 0721-81-3022, 0721-80-1975,

0721-80-3619, 0721-80-3505, 0721-80-1553, 0721-80-3174, 0721-80-1336, 0721-80-2377 &
0721-80-1110, 0721-71-9581 and a 1.428 acre portion of the right-of-way of Walden Road.
Subject area being located in Wake County, North Carolina:

BEGINNING at an iron pipe found, said iron pipe being the along the easterly right-of-way of
Evans Road and being along the northerly line of the Now or Formerly Willie Larry Harris Sr.
property;

Thence leaving the easterly right-of-way of Evans Road, through an iron pipe found that is 0.18’
off line, S 89° 06” 00” E 250.87 to an iron pipe found

Thence S 89° 14’ 15” E 320.31° to an iron pipe found, said iron being along the westerly right-
of-way of Walden Road;

Thence through the right-of-way of Walden Road the following courses and distances:

S 89° 16’ 10” E 37.71” to a computed point;

S 89°17° 02” E 33.53” to an iron pipe found, said iron pipe being along the easterly right-of-way
of Walden Road and also being along the northerly line of the Now or Formerly Harold &
Gwendolyn Evans property;

Thence S 89° 12’ 03” E 388.26° to an iron pipe found;

Thence S 02° 13° 06” W 155.98’ to an iron pipe found, said iron pipe being the northeast corner
of the Now or Formerly Willie Harris Sr. property;

Thence S 01° 56” 46” W 207.00° to an iron pipe set, said iron pipe being the northeast corner of
the Now or Formerly Ivory Lee Harris property;

Thence S 03° 10’ 27” W 99.80° to an iron pipe found, said iron pipe being the northwest corner
of the Now or Formerly Kevin T Thorpe property;

Thence S 88° 28° 40” E 464.85 to an iron pipe found;

Thence S 03° 55 51” W 75.11° to an iron pipe with cap found;

Thence S 04° 01° 22” W 181.84’ to an iron pipe set;

Thence S 04° 02’ 46” W 208.23’ to an iron pipe found;

Thence N 88° 25° 25” W 328.38’ to an iron pipe set, said iron pipe being the no weghe
the Now or Formerly Elizabeth G. Clark property; 2
Thence S 04° 14> 19” W 118.98’ to an iron pipe found;
Thence N 88°43” 41” W 135.61° to an iron pipe found,
Thence N 04° 13° 23” E 119.70’ to an iron pipe found;

. A
WWW. LF] Y
4. Page 23 - ng.com LEEETTTR!



abunce
Typewritten Text
Attachment "A"


Bohler Engineering NC, PLLC
4130 Parklake Avenue, Suite 310
Raleigh, NC 27612

919.578.9000

Page 2 of 3

Thence N 04° 17° 58” E 62.78’ to an iron pipe found, said iron pipe being the northeast corner of
the Now or Formerly Jonathan M. Peck property;

Thence N 83° 32’ 26” W 369.38’ to an iron pipe found;

Thence N 83° 44° 30” W 99.48 to an iron pipe found;

Thence S 04° 47° 12 W 165.25° to a found T-bar;

Thence S 04° 52° 26” W 136.86° to a found T-bar;

Thence S 04° 53° 59” W 208.94’ to an iron pipe found, said iron pipe being the southeast corner
of the Now or Formerly Sam Walden Heirs property and being along the northerly line of the
Now or Formerly McWill LLC property;

Thence with the northerly line of the Now or F ormerly McWill LLC property S 85° 23’ 08” E
147.19’ to an iron pipe with cap found;

Thence S 08° 41° 57” W 191.35’ to an iron pipe found;

Thence S 08° 41° 57 W 222.27° to an iron pipe set, said iron pipe being along the northerly
right-of-way of Humie Olive Road;

Thence through the right-of-way of Humie Olive Road S 08° 41° 577 W 29.90° to a computed
point, said computed point being along the center line of Humie Olive Road;

Thence with the centerline of Humie Olive Road the following courses and distances:

N 65° 50 43 W 318.68 to a computed point;

N 65 05° 56” W 199.87" to a computed point;

N 64° 29’ 34” W 32.49’ to a computed point;

N 63°01” 217 W 90.23" to a computed point;

N 61°16° 47” W 92.85 to a computed point, said computed being in the intersection of Humie
Olive Road and Evans Road;

Thence with the centerline of Evans Road the following courses and distances:
N19°32° 08” E 113.54 to a computed point;
N 18°16° 10” E 49.98 to a computed point;
N 17°10° 01” E 49.97" to a computed point;
N 16° 40° 27” E 99.96’ to a computed point;
N 15° 14’ 32” E 49.98’ to a computed point;
N 12°40’ 31” E 49.97’ to a computed point;
N 09°31” 48” E 49.98 to a computed point;
N 05°59° 12” E 49.98 to a computed point;
N 02° 50° 28” E 50.01” to a computed point;
N 05°15° 29” W 50.15” to a computed point;
N 04° 24’ 44” W 47.39’ to a computed point, said computed point being in the intersection of
Evans Road and Walden Road;

Thence N 08° 24° 38” W 347.44’ to a computed point;

Thence with a curve to the right, said curve having a length of 165.46° and a radius of 954.93°,
whose chord bears N 03° 28 26” W 165.25° to a computed point; :

Thence leaving the centerline of Evans Road S 89° 03’ 16® E 20.57" to an iron pipe found, said
iron pipe being 10’ inside the eastern ri ght-of-way of Evans Road, and along the westerly line of
the Now or Formerly Ronald & Margaret Allison property; :

Thence with the westerly line of the Now or Formerly Ronald & Margaret Allison Property

- Page 24 -




Bohler Engineering NC, PLLC
4130 Parklake Avenue, Suite 310
Raleigh, NC 27612
919.578.9000

Page 3 of 3

N 01°52° 01” E 159.99’ to an iron pipe found;

Thence N 04° 56° 15” E 162.20’ to an iron pipe found, said iron pipe also being THE POINT
AND PLACE OF BEGINNING and containing 1,546,394 square feet or 35.500 acres, more or
less.

LESS AND EXCEPT the portion of land known as Stewart Cemetery and being more
particularly described as follows:

Commencing at an iron pipe found, said iron pipe being along the southeasterly intersection of
Walden Road and Evans Road, thence S 84° 07° 06” E 74.04’ to an iron pipe with cap found;
Thence S 85° 13’ 16” E 5.82 to an iron pipe found, said iron pipe being the southeastern corner
of the Now or Formerly John R. Williams property, also being the southwestern corner of
Stewart Cemetery, and also being the POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING;

Thence N 21° 44° 13” E 153.11° to an iron pipe found;

Thence N 88° 03 49” E 174.73 to an iron pipe with cap found;

Thence S 04° 50° 15” W 42.42’ to an iron pipe with cap found;

Thence S 05° 00° 04” W 29.64” to an iron pipe found;

Thence S 04° 40’ 56” W 98.64’ to a found T-bar;

Thence N 84° 13° 11” W 218.23” to an iron pipe found, said iron pipe also being THE POINT
AND PLACE OF BEGINNING and containing 30,861 square feet or 0.708 acres, more or less.

The property described hereon is subject to all easements, rights-of-way and restrictions of
record.

www.| - Page 25- |hg.com




"Attachment B"

Evans Road PUD Assembly

PD PLAN
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA
Submitted: May 3, 2021
Resubmittal: July 9, 2021

PREPARED BY:

- Page 26 -




Evans Road PUD Assembly

Section 1: Table of Contents — PUD Text

Section 1:

Section 2:

Section 3:

Section 4:

Section 5:

Section 6:

Section 7:

Section 8:

Section 9:

Section 10:

Section 11:

Section 12:

Section 13:

Section 14:

Section 15:

Section 16:

Section 17:

Table of Contents

Vicinity Map

Project Data

Purpose Statement

Permitted Uses

Design Controls

Architectural Controls

Parking and Loading

Signhage

Natural Resource and Environmental Data
Stormwater Management

Parks and Recreation

Public Facilities

Phasing Plan

Consistency with 2045 Land Use Plan
Compliance with UDO

Compliance with Apex Transportation Plan and Bicycle Plan

- Page 27 -




Evans Road PUD Assembly

Section 2: Vicinity Map

The Evans Road PUD is located in the Town of Apex, northeast of the intersection of
Evans Road and Humie Olive Road. The Assembly is surrounded on three sides by
residential communities built in the last seven years. To the north is the Manors at Bella
Casa, to the west is the Madison community, and the Verona at Bella Casa community is
east of the project area. Directly south is Humie Olive Road, and across Humie Olive Road
are the Apex Friendship schools. Walden Road runs through the subject property.
Development of the proposed community will realign Walden Road and make a more
sensible east-west connection from Evans Road to Vecchio Lane aligned with Madison

Creek Drive.

- Page 28 -




Evans Road PUD Assembly

Section 3: Project Data
A. Name of Project:
Evans Road PUD

B. Property Owners:

MCWILL, LLC Horton, Dione & Robert Sam Walden Heirs
15711 Verdura Ave P.O. Box 6 36 Snowflower Lane
Paramount, CA 90723 Apex, NC 27502 Willingboro, NJ 08046

Shirley Lynn Heirs Sam Walden Heirs Joseph Paul Page Heirs
3317 Lorena Lynn Ct 1305 S. Paxon Street 1994 Flint Hill Drive
Fuquay Varina, NC 27526 Philadelphia, PA 19143 Lawrenceville, GA 30044
Joseph B. Shaw Heirs Joyner, Kenneth & Sharon Ivory Lee Harris Heirs

3747 Corbett Road 2909 Walden Road 655 Enterprise Dr Apt 137
Mebane, NC 27302 Apex, NC 27502 Rohnert Park, C 94928
Evans, Almie Linwood Thorpe, Kevin T. & Powell, Lathan Williams, John & Robin
1609 N. Myrtle Ave 2308 Narrawood Street 2917 Walden Road
Clearwater, FL 33755 Raleigh, NC 27614 Apex, NC 27502
Allison, Ronald & Margaret Harris, Willie Larry Sr. Harris, Jo Ella W.
3305 Evans Road 2929 Evans Road 2909 Evans Road
Apex, NC 27502 Apex, NC 27502 Apex, NC 27502

Prepared By:

Nil Ghosh, Associate
Morningstar Law Group

421 Fayetteville St | Ste 530
Raleigh, NC 27601

C. Current Zoning Designation:
Rural Residential (RR)

D. Proposed Zoning Designation:
Planned Unit Development — Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ)

E. Current 2045 Land Use Map Designation:

Medium Density Residential (3-7 units/acre); and
Medium/High Density Residential (7-14 units/acre)

F. Proposed Use

Up to 115 dwelling units and associated open space, recreational amenities,
and infrastructure.

G. Size of Project
34.573 Acres (including 1.623 acres of right-of-way)

4

- Page 29 -




Evans Road PUD Assembly

Section 4: Purpose Statement

The Evans Road PUD development will be a residential community with both single-
family detached and townhome units. The maximum building height shall be forty
feet (40’) measured to the top of any pitched roof. For a site adjacent to existing
single-family homes, across the street from public schools, and adjacent to a
planned Neighborhood Mixed Use Center and Office corridor, the mixed housing
type residential development is intended to provide a transition between the more
intense and non-residential developments existing or planned south along Humie
Olive and the existing single-family residential communities to the north.

A thirty-foot streetscape shall be established along the right-of-way for Humie Olive
Road (a thoroughfare) and a thirty-foot streetscape shall be established along the
right-of-way for Evans Road (a minor collector). A twenty-foot buffer shall be
established around the remaining perimeter of the project.

This concept is consistent with the Town’s stated PUD goals to provide site specific,
high quality neighborhoods that exhibit natural feature preservation as well as
compatibility with, and connectivity to, surrounding land uses. More specifically, this
plan will:

¢ Allow uses that are compatible with Section 4.2.2, Use Table of the UDO
e Provide for the preservation of existing environmentally sensitive areas.

e Provide for site specific and appropriate stormwater controls that exceed the

requirements of the UDO.

e Provide appropriate buffering and screening from the proposed use to the

existing residential areas.
e Offer medium to medium-high density housing near a planned Neighborhood
Mixed Use Center where there are not many options for the same.

Demonstrate dimensional standards that are consistent with the UDO, and
where variations occur, said variations will be included herein and subject to
Council approval.

Provide a high-quality community that is linked by a network of connected
streets and pedestrian sidewalks that promotes connectivity, walkability, and
healthy lifestyles.

Exhibit character and quality that is compatible with surrounding communities,
which is expected to enhance the value of surrounding land uses.

Provide open space and walkable trails to promote pedestrian activity, while
appropriately buffering adjacent residential areas.

Site-specific standards and conditions of this PUD Plan shall be consistent with all
Conditional Zoning (CZ) District standards set forth in UDO Section 2.3.3, Conditional
Zoning Districts and UDO Section 2.3.4.F.1, Planned Unit Development (PUD-CZ)
District. The proposed PUD will provide a development density that is consistent with
principles found throughout the Advance Apex 2045 Comprehensive Plan.

- Page 30 -




Evans Road PUD Assembly

Section 5: Permitted Uses

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below.
The permitted uses are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO
and any additional limitations or regulations stated below. For convenience, some
relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do not imply that
other sections of the UDO do not apply. The development will only include residential
and supporting uses. Specifically, the permitted uses include:

e Single-family e Recreation facility, private
e Townhouse e Park, active

e Accessory Apartment e Park, passive

e Greenway e Utility, minor

Additionally, the following conditions shall apply:

A

mo o

@m

— T

A maximum of 115 residential units shall be permitted upon the property. No more than 50
Townhouse units shall be allowed on the property.

All buildings constructed on the property shall provide solar conduit for the installation of
rooftop solar panels.

Signage or informational brochures shall be provided by any homeowner’s association
regarding the need to eliminate fertilizer near SCMs.

Developer shall install pollinator-friendly flora within SCM Planting areas.

Plantings within perimeter buffers and along streetscapes shall be approved native species
as listed in the Apex Design & Development Manual.

Sod used within perimeter buffers, SCMs, and along streets shall not be fescue grasses.
Developer shall apply for Energy Star or other energy efficiency rating for all newly
constructed homes on the property.

Developer shall install at least three (3) pet waste stations within the community.

SCMs shall not be located within State dictated stream buffers without the approval of a
Town of Apex No Practical Alternatives (NPA) finding.

Prior to final plat approval, developer shall make a one-time donation to the Apex Affordable
Housing Fund in an amount equal to $215.00 per residential lot on the final plat.

A minimum of 25% of the single-family detached homes shall provide the primary bedroom
on the main floor.

A minimum of 10% of the townhome units shall be 15% narrower than the average width
of the other townhome units.

Each play lawn shall include an historical marker with information about the Friendship
area. The developer will work with the Town of Apex and the historical owners of the
property to determine the content of each historical marker.

. To demonstrate the project's commitment to preserving and re-establishing tree canopy in

our region, the developer seeks to replant and restore existing tree canopy that is removed
from those portions of the property that are anticipate to contain single family and
townhome lots. Prior to recording the first subdivision plat for the property, the developer
will provide a donation of $7,350 to a local non-profit organization with a mission towards
tree preservation and replacement.

- Page 31 -




Evans Road PUD Assembly

Section 6: Proposed Design Controls

A. Maximum Non-Residential Densities (SF per non-residential use) This PUD does

not provide for any non-residential land uses (see Section 5, Permitted Uses).

B. Residential Densities and Design Controls
Density - The overall gross density shall not exceed 6.0 units per acre.
Design Controls — Dimensional standards below shall apply to all residential uses,
and at a minimum, will comply with the following:
Maximum Density: 6.0 Units/Acre
(includes RCA and rights-of-way)
Maximum Number of Units: 115
Maximum Built-Upon Area: 60%
Minimum Lot Size: n/a
Minimum Lot Width: 50 feet for single-family detached
22 feet for townhouse
Maximum Building Height: 40 feet, no more than 3 stories
Note: Porches, patios, decks and other accessory structures may encroach into building setbacks as
allowed by the Town of Apex UDO.
Minimum Building Setbacks:
Single Family (feet) Townhouse (feet)
Front 10 10
Front (garage) 20 20
Side S 0
Rear 10 10
Building 10 10
Minimum Buffer/RCA Setbacks: 10 feet for Buildings
5 feet for Parking Areas
C. Buffers

Perimeter Buffers

Northern boundary (Bella Casa):

Southern boundary (Humie Olive Road):

Western boundary (Evans Road):
Eastern boundary (Bella Casa and residential uses)
Adjacent to REID 0103305 (Stewarts Cemetery)

20-foot Type B
30-foot Type B
30-foot Type B
20-foot Type B
10-foot Type B

Note: Where perimeter buffers coincide with stream buffers or 100-year floodplain, existing
vegetation will be used to meet the buffer width and opacity.

Thoroughfare and Collector Street Buffers

As depicted on the PD Plan, a 30’ Type B Buffer shall be established along Humie
Olive Road and a 30’ Type B buffer shall be established along Evans Road.

- Page 32 -




Evans Road PUD Assembly

Section 7: Proposed Architectural Controls

The proposed development offers the following architectural controls to ensure a
consistency of character throughout the development, while allowing for enough variety
to create interest and avoid monotony. Changes to the exterior materials, roof, windows,
doors, process, trim, etc. are allowable with administrative approval at the staff level.
Further details shall be provided at the time of Master Subdivision submittal. The
following conditions shall apply:

Townhomes:

A. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and
trim are permitted.

B. The roofline cannot be a single mass; it must be broken up horizontally and
vertically between every unit.

C. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details, or carriage-style
adornments on them.

D. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a

prominent covered porch/stoop area leading to the front door.

The garage cannot protrude more than 1 foot out from the front fagade or front

porch.

F. Front facades shall have horizontal relief achieved using recesses and
projections.

G. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to
include a minimum of three-color families for siding and shall include varied trim,
shutter, and accent colors complementing the siding color.

H. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way
shall have trim around the windows.

|.  The visible side of a townhome on a corner lot facing the public street shall
contain at least 3 decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following
elements:

m

e Bay windows e Decorative shakes

e Recessed windows e Decorative air vents on gables
e Decorative windows e Decorative cornice

e Trim around the windows e Column on gable

e Wrap around porch or side porch e Portico

e Two or more building materials e Balcony

e Decorative brick or stone e Dormer

[ J [ ]

Decorative trim Decorative gable

- Page 33 -




Evans Road PUD Assembly

Single-Family

A

0

moo

n

Garage doors shall have windows, decorative details, or carriage-style
adornments on them.

The garage shall not protrude more than 1 foot out from the front facade and front
porch.

The roof shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater for 75% of the building designs.
Eaves shall project at least 12 inches from the wall of the structure.

A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to
include a minimum of three-color families for siding and shall include varied trim,
shutter, and accent colors complementing the siding color.

House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a
prominent covered porch/stoop area leading to the front door.

The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way
shall have trim around the windows.

Front porches shall be a minimum of 6 feet deep.

The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at
least 3 decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:

e Bay windows e Decorative shakes

¢ Recessed windows e Decorative air vents on gables
e Decorative windows e Decorative cornice

e Trim around the windows e Column on gable

e Wrap around porch or side porch e Portico

e Two or more building materials e Balcony

e Decorative brick or stone e Dormer

[ ] [ ]

Decorative trim Decorative gable

Section 8: Parking and Loading
Parking for the Evans Road PUD Assembly shall comply with Apex UDO Section 8.3, Off-
Street Parking and Loading.

Section 9: Signage
All signage for the Evans Road PUD Assembly shall comply with Apex UDO Section 8.7,

Signs.

Section 10: Natural Resource and Environmental Data
A. River Basins and Watershed Protection Overlay Districts
The project is located within the Jordan Lake Watershed, which is within the Cape
Fear River Basin. While the site is within the Primary Watershed Protection Overlay
District, it does not contain any FEMA designated 100-year floodplain.

- Page 34 -




Evans Road PUD Assembly

B. Resource Conservation Areas (RCA) — Required and Provided
This PUD will be subject to, and meet the requirements of Section 8.1.2 of the UDO,
Resource Conservation Area and Section 2.3.4, Planned Development Districts.

The Site is located on the west side of the 540 corridor and therefore is required to
preserve a minimum of 30% Resource Conservation Area (RCA). Designated RCA
areas will be consistent with the items listed in Section 8.1.2(B) of the Town’s UDO.
Preserved streams, wetlands, and associated riparian buffers provide the primary
RCA’s throughout the site. Additional RCA area provided include stormwater
management areas, perimeter buffers, play lawns, and greenway trails within the
walkable community.

C. Historic structures

Based upon the information contained within the North Carolina State Historic
Preservation Office website, there are no historic structures present within the project
boundary.

Section 11: Stormwater Management

The Evans Road PUD Assembly shall meet all stormwater management requirements for
quality and quantity treatment in accordance with Section 6.1.7 of the UDO, such that post
development peak runoff shall not exceed pre-development peak runoff conditions for the
1 year, 10 year, and 25 year 24-hour storm events.

Section 12: Parks and Recreation

The Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission reviewed the project
on June 30, 2021 and unanimously recommended fee-in-lieu of dedication with a credit for
construction of greenway trail if an opportunity is identified at the time of Master
Subdivision plan review and approval. The recommendation is based on the 2021-2022
rates and proposed maximum lot count provided:

Single Family detached Units: $3,495.24 x 65 = $227,190.60
Single Family attached Units: $2,354.05 x 50 = $117,702.50
Total residential fee in lieu per current unit count: $344,893.10

(final PRCR amount will be coordinated with staff during Master Subdivision Plan and
Construction Document reviews)

Per Article 14, of the UDO credit for greenway against fees requires the approval of
construction plans, contingent upon approval of an engineer’s estimate of probable cost
for greenway construction. The greenway shall be completed prior to 25% of the total units
for the project receiving building permits.

10

- Page 35 -




Evans Road PUD Assembly

Section 13: Public Facilities

The proposed PUD shall meet all Public Facilities requirements as set forth in UDO Section
2.3.4(F)(1)(f) and be designed according to sound engineering standards and shall comply
with Town of Apex Sewer and Water Master Plan and the Town of Apex Standards and
Specifications. Specifically, road and utility infrastructure shall be as follows:

General Roadway Infrastructure

Developer shall provide minimum frontage widening based on % of the ultimate
cross section as shown on the adopted Transportation Plan in effect at time of
Master Subdivision Plan submittal. The road network will promote connectivity
wherever possible to adjacent neighborhoods and undeveloped property. Further,
cul-de-sacs will be avoided except where environmental features make through
streets unfeasible. Sidewalks will be provided on both sides of streets internal to the
site.

Refer to the concept plan of the PUD plan for proposed access points, stub street
extensions, and planned vehicular connectivity. All access and circulation are
conceptual and will be finalized at the time of Master Subdivision Plan review and
approval.

Transportation Improvements

Roadway improvements are subject to modification and final approval by the Town
of Apex and NCDOT as part of the Master Subdivision Plan and Construction
Document approval process. A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) has been performed
as part of this PUD rezoning consistent with the Town’s standards for the same.
Based upon the TIA and staff review, the following traffic improvements are
proposed for this development:

Evans Road

The Developer shall widen Evans Road along the project frontage as development
occurs based upon a minimum 35-foot curb and gutter roadway section with a 5-
foot sidewalk and dedication based upon a 60-foot right-of-way.

Humie Olive Road

The Developer shall widen Humie Olive Road along the project frontage as
development occurs based upon a minimum 41-foot curb and gutter roadway
section with 10-foot side path and dedication based upon an 80-foot right-of-way.

Evans Road and Madison Creek Drive at Site Drive 1

e The Developer shall construct one (1) full-access point to Evans Road aligned
with the existing Madison Creek Drive.

e Construct westbound approach with one (1) ingress lane and one (1) egress
lane.

¢ Provide stop control for the westbound approach.

11

- Page 36 -




Evans Road PUD Assembly

Humie Olive Road at Site Drive 2

e The Developer shall construct one (1) right-in/right-out access point to Humie
Olive Road located approximately 450-feet east of Evans Road.

e Construct southbound approach, striped as a right-in/right-out with one (1)
ingress lane and one (1) egress lane.

e Provide stop-control for the southbound approach.

e Provide an exclusive westbound right-turn lane along Humie Olive Road with a
minimum of 50 feet of storage and appropriate deceleration and taper length.

e Construct a monolithic concrete median on Humie Olive Road to prohibit left-
turn movements.

Humie Olive Road and Evans Road

e Provide pedestrian accommodations across the north and east legs of the
intersection, with crosswalks and traffic signal modifications including push
buttons and crosswalk indicators to accommodate new pedestrian phases.

¢ Wayfinding Improvements
Wayfinding measures at the site shall be provided to facilitate the movement of
vehicles and pedestrians to and within the development.

e Water and Sanitary Sewer
All lots within the project will be served by the Town of Apex water and sanitary
sewer facilities. The utility design will be finalized at the time of Master Subdivision
Plan review and approval based upon available facilities adjacent to the site at that
time. A conceptual utility plan is included in the PUD plan for reference.

e Other Utilities
Electricity will be provided by Apex Electric. Phone, cable, and gas will be provided
by the developer and shall meet the Town of Apex standards as outlined in the
uDO.

Section 14: Phasing Plan

This PUD may be completed in up to three (3) phases, with construction anticipated to
begin in 2022. Project phasing will be planned to ensure the points of access, RCA,
stormwater controls and other design standards are met in accordance with the UDO. A
final phasing plan will be incorporated within the Master Subdivision Plans (MSP) for
review and approval through the Technical Review Committee.

Section 15: Consistency with the 2045 Land Use Map

Based upon discussions with Town staff through the Technical Review Committee pre-
application and zoning review processes, the proposed land use is consistent with th<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>